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Acknowledgement of Country

NSW Treasury

The NSW Treasury acknowledges that 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
peoples are the First Peoples and 
Traditional Custodians of Australia, 
and the oldest continuing culture in 
human history. 

We pay respect to Elders past and 
present and commit to respecting the 
lands we walk on, and the 
communities we walk with. 

We celebrate the deep and enduring 
connection of Aboriginal and Torres 
Strait Islander peoples to Country 
and acknowledge their continuing 
custodianship of the land, seas 
and sky.

We acknowledge the ongoing 
stewardship of Aboriginal and Torres 
Strait Islander peoples, and the 
important contribution they make to 
our communities and economies. 

We reflect on the continuing impact of 
government policies and practices , 
and recognise our responsibility to 
work together with and for Aboriginal 
and Torres Strait Islander peoples, 
families and communities, towards 
improved economic, social and 
cultural outcomes.

Artwork: ‘Regeneration’ by 
Josie Rose



What to expect from today?
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Section 1: Who are we? Section 3: What is outcome-based funding?

Who is OSII? Why outcome-based contracting?

What is Social Impact Investment? Key considerations for an outcome-based contract

What has OSII delivered to date? Case Study: Youth Employment Social Impact Program

Section 2: What is this opportunity? Section 4: What resources are available?

Social Impact Outcomes Fund overview Resources available to support the initiative

Focus of this tender opportunity Activity: Consultation and discussion

Target outcomes and eligibility 

Activity: Consultation and discussion Section 5: What next?

Indicative timeline

Next steps 

General Q&A
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Housekeeping
• Keep yourself on mute and camera 

off during the presentation 
components

• Use the chat for all questions 
• Participate in the polls when 

prompted 
• Put your (virtual) hand up and turn 

your camera on during the 
discussions



Market sounding protocols
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• Participation in this pre-tender market
engagement process does not imply any
registration, pre-qualification or any other
preferred status in respect of OSII.

• Any organisation which does not participate
in this pre-tender market engagement
process will not be prejudiced in any way in
respect of any subsequent procurement
process in relation to OSII.

• Procurement for OSII will follow a
structured and transparent process and
successful tenderers will be chosen solely
on the basis of predetermined selection
criteria, uninfluenced by their participation
or otherwise in this pre-tender market
engagement process.

• The feedback provided from the written
responses and from the meetings, will be
kept confidential, and may be used to help
develop the development, ownership and
management model and any future
procurement activities.

• The pre-tender market engagement process
does not comprise part of the potential
procurement process and is an information
gathering exercise only. Upon the
commencement of any formal procurement
process, proponents will not rely on any
information supplied or communicated as
part of the pre-tender market engagement
process.

The following protocols apply for market engagement under the 
Social Impact Outcomes Fund Tender 1

Note: The Office of Social Impact Investment has engaged OCM as their probity adviser for the duration of the SIOF Tender 1 process.



Who are we?

Introducing the Office of Social Impact Investment (OSII)

1



Who is OSII?
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OSII was established in 2015 to develop the social impact investment market in NSW. Our 
work can be categorised into two work streams.  

Underpinning all workstreams is OSII’s capability building role which aims to grow awareness of SII and the skills 
required in the sector to participate in impact investing

1
SOCIAL IMPACT INVESTMENTS
Deliver new SIIs and mainstream successful SII pilots with 
government agencies and service delivery partners, 
including social enterprises

2
SUSTAINABILITY BONDS
Lead Sustainability Bond Programme Impact Reporting
and Asset Identification



• SIIs target complex cohorts, with services funded 
based on an ’invest to save’ philosophy – interventions 
today avoid significant future costs to government.

• SIIs can come in a variety of forms (social impact 
bonds, payment by results contracts), all underpinned 
by four core principles: 

1. outcomes: designing for, measuring, and 
rewarding delivery of outcomes

2. innovation: testing innovative services and 
building an evidence base to embed what works 

3. prevention: shifting the focus from high-cost 
acute services to prevention

4. partnerships: leveraging the strengths of 
different sectors and sharing risks and rewards.

What is social impact investment (SII)?
SII brings together the public, for purpose and for-profit sectors to achieve a social impact 
alongside a financial return

Investors 
provide upfront financing for 

services

Service 
providers 

deliver innovative 
program and agreed 

social outcomes

People’s lives improve and 
they need less support

Government 
savings are used to 
pay on outcomes, 

including a return on 
investment for investor

SII
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• This includes 5 Social Impact Bonds and 4 Payment-by-Result contracts

• OSII’s investments cover multiple policy areas, including family restoration, recidivism, palliative care, 
mental health, homelessness, youth unemployment and Aboriginal economic development

Newpin
Complete, 
2013-2020

Resilient
Families
Complete, 
2013-2018 

Silver 
Chain
Active, 
2017

On TRACC
Terminated 

2016-19

Resolve
Active, 2017

Foyer 
Central
Active,
2021

Sticking 
Together

Active, 
2019

Home and 
Healthy

Pilot, 2019-
21

YESIP
Active, 2021

Momentum
In 

development

Reducing OOHC 

entry, helpline 

reports and risk 

assessments

Reducing 

re-incarceration 

of parolees in 

Sydney 

Reducing 

hospital usage 

for mental health 

patients

Increasing hours 

in employment 

for vulnerable 

young people 

Supporting 

stable housing  

and employment 

for adults leaving 

health facilities 

Supporting 

stable housing  

and employment 

for young OOHC 

leavers

Reducing 

hospital usage 

for palliative care 

patients

Helping young 

people with 

multiple or 

complex barriers 

to employment

What SIIs has OSII delivered to date?
OSII has delivered 9 social impact investments, with 2 currently in development



What is this opportunity?

Introducing the Social Impact Outcomes Fund Tender 1 
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What is the Social Impact Outcomes Fund (SIOF)?

Outcomes 
based 
contracts

Priority 
Policy 
Areas

Tender 1: advance 
the economic 
wellbeing of 
women with 
experiences of 
disadvantage 
through 
partnerships with 
WISEs

Tender 2: improve 
educational and 
job readiness 
outcomes for 
Indigenous youth, 
with a particular 
focus on girls

Minimum of 2 social impact providers (including social enterprises) 
funded per competitive tender process 

Current opportunity

Future tenders: 
TBC

What? SIOF ($30m over 4 years)   

The 2021/2022 NSW Budget allocated $30m to establish a SIOF to pilot SIIs

• The 2021/2022 NSW Budget allocated 
$30m to establish a SIOF to pilot a 
range of social impact investments. 

• Funding will be spread across multiple 
tender rounds targeting different 
outcome domains.

• The first two rounds of investments will 
focus on women facing disadvantage 
and Indigenous youth, particularly girls. 

• Our discussion today is focused on 
Tender 1, which seeks to advance the 
economic wellbeing of women 
facing disadvantage through 
partnerships with work integrated social 
enterprises (WISEs).



OSII has three primary goals for Tender 1

Advance the 
economic 

wellbeing of women 
facing disadvantage in 
NSW through impact 

investing

1

Better understand the 
role and impact of WISEs 

in delivering outcomes 
for the people of NSW

2

Trial innovative SII structures, 
such as layered investments 

and partnerships with 
philanthropy, if appropriate for 

the proposals*

*We invite proponents to submit proposals with SII structures that best suit your needs.

Trial SII and outcome-
based contracting as an 
approach to supporting 

WISEs

3

Goal 3 may also include trialling new SII structures depending on the proposals received 



Key parameters of the SIOF Tender 1 opportunity  

How much funding is available? 
Up to $5m – $10m for multiple initiatives

Who can apply? 
Organisations must: 
1. be a work integrated social enterprise (see below)
2. be able to operate the proposed service / program in NSW
3. be a legal entity (or entities in the case of a joint proposal or consortia) with the capacity to contract
4. have an Australian Business Number and be registered for GST.

What is a work integrated social enterprise (WISE)?

WISEs are social enterprises that provide employment and pathways to employment for people who experience structural barriers to
mainstream workforce participation. 

Social enterprises are those that have clear evidence that they trade primarily for a social purpose. Evidence includes: 
• certification (or in the process of obtaining certification) from Social Traders
• a letter prepared by a member of CPA Australia, Chartered Accountants Australia & New Zealand or the Institute of Public 

Accountants that the business does, or intends to, trade primarily for social purpose.

To deliver what? 
To deliver economic wellbeing outcomes for women facing disadvantage through an outcome-based contract. The proposed program 
must demonstrate that it was designed with and for women. All participants of the program must be women – that is, any person who 
holds that particular gender identity.

For consultation and subject to change in the final tender based on feedback received
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Proposed target outcomes and indicative metrics
Economic wellbeing encompasses equitable opportunity, access, and security for women

Outcomes Indicators Payment Metrics

• Greater access to employment 
for women experiencing 
disadvantage

• Women are equipped to meet in-
demand skills for the future of 
work

• Greater gender diversity 
in traditionally ‘male dominated’ 
sectors

• Increase in employment rate 
and/or hours worked

• Increase in disposable income

• Number of participants 
achieving sustained 26 and 52 
weeks employment outcomes 
(above the baseline), and 
transitioning to mainstream 
employment (if applicable)

• Average gross annual earnings 
of participants in full-time, part-
time, or casual employment

• Women facing disadvantage 
develop the skills 
and qualifications they need to 
enjoy active and productive lives

• Increase in the number of job-
readiness training commenced 
and completed

• Increase in the number of 
apprenticeships and traineeships 
completed

• Number of completions of 
recognised vocational or job-
readiness training (above the 
baseline)

• Number of participants 
commencing and completions of 
apprenticeships and traineeships 
(above the baseline)

Economic

Education & Skills



What is outcome-based contracting?

SIOF Tender 1 will apply an outcomes-based approach to funding WISEs

3



Weak evidence –
little evidence of 
what works and 

for whom

Potential waste –
no incentive for 

continuous 
improvement

Government 
processes 

stymy 
innovation

Limited 
understanding of 
the lifetime cost 

of poor outcomes

Need new ways 
to address fiscal 

challenges  

Inform decision-
making & innovation –
whether to ‘do more’, 

iterate & innovate 

Government measures 
and rewards for 

success and outcomes 
which limits wastage

Outcomes 
contracting fosters 

community 
solutions and 

innovation

Use data to 
understand 

service usage and 
target investment 

Contribute to 
broader systems 

change & best 
practices

Traditional grant funding

Social impact investment

Outcomes-based vs grant funding 
Promoting innovation and informed decision making in policy delivery



Key components of a SII funding proposal
What to consider for an outcomes-based contract?

Service offering CapabilitySocial Impact Community engagement Value Creation

• Clear evidence of 
social and 
economic value to 
its participants 
and the State

• Relevant and well 
defined target 
cohort

• Sound referral 
process

• Additionality and 
innovation

Experience, systems 
and culture to: 

• successfully deliver 
services 

• measure and report 
on outcomes, and 
continual program 
improvement based 
on results

• foster collaborative 
partnerships

• Clear definition of 
social outcomes

• Supporting 
evidence and data 
to verify outcome 
payments

• Secondary 
outcomes (inc. 
qualitative) to 
understand 
program impact

• Local research, 
knowledge and/or 
experience to 
meaningfully engage 
with communities

• Person-centred and 
culturally appropriate 
service offering



Case Study: Youth Employment Social Impact Program

$1.5m funding for 3 

service providers to 

deliver programs 

targeting employment 

outcomes for young 

people aged 16-24 years

Small upfront payment 

provided to service 

providers at the 

beginning of the 2-year 

contract

Payments made on 

milestones in the lead up 

to outcomes being 

achieved

Outcome payments 

made on 4, 13 and 26 –

week sustained 

employment outcomes

Milestone payments allow for earlier 

payments which can be tailored to the 

unique elements of the program as well as 

provide early indicators that the program is 

on track to achieving the target outcomes

Consistency in outcomes 

across providers allow for 

comparison of performance

A recent example of a NSW outcome-based contract with social enterprises



Example of what was asked for in the YESIP submission 
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Upfront payment $30,000

Payment metrics

Target # of 
milestones/outcomes 
achieved over the 
program (a)

$ payment per 
milestone/outcome 
achieved  (b) 

Total $ payment value 
(a x b)

Milestones

Milestone 1
e.g. Completion of accredited training

50 $1,500 $75,000

[Milestone 2, etc]

Outcomes

Outcome 1
e.g. Sustained employment 26 weeks

20 $3,000 $60,000

[Outcome 2, etc]

Total funding requested $165,000

Payment model that proponents were required to complete in the proposal

Note: numbers and dollar amounts above are illustrative only.



What resources are available?

Integrating capability building into the process

4



What resources are available? 
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• OSII’s Technical guide for outcomes 
measurement*

• Online modules on how to develop a 
social impact investment proposal*

• Evaluations of NSW Social Impact 
Investments

• The NSW Human Services Outcomes 
Framework 

• Research papers on SII structures and 
case studies from other jurisdictions 
soon to be published on the OSII website

• Other organisations in the impact 
investment sector also have resources, 
tools and templates available that can 
support your outcome measurement 
journey.

OSII and NSW Government agencies have a number of resources 
available to support the development of SII and outcome-based 
contracts. 
We’re also interested to hear what capability supports would be 
useful to you as part of this opportunity.

*Note that these modules and resources were created to support the development of social impact investments both with and without private investors. Please use components 
that are relevant to your proposal. 

https://www.osii.nsw.gov.au/tools-and-resources/technical-guide/
https://www.osii.nsw.gov.au/tools-and-resources/how-to-develop-a-social-impact-investment-proposal/
https://www.osii.nsw.gov.au/tools-and-resources/evaluation-of-the-social-impact-investment/
https://www.facs.nsw.gov.au/resources/human-services-outcomes-framework


What next?
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Indicative Timeline for SIOF Tender 1
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April – June 2022

• Market engagement

• Finalising tender 
documentation based 
on consultation

October 2022 →

• Service delivery under 
the individual contracts 
with the WISEs 
(tailored timeframes 
for each)

June – August 2022

• Tender 1 released as a 
competitive tender 
process

• WISEs submit 
proposals

August – October 2022

• Evaluation of proposals

• Contract negotiation of 
successful proposals



Next steps

Remember to:

Contact OSII if you have any 
further questions or feedback for 
the tender opportunity via email: 
socialimpactinvestment@treasury.nsw.gov.au

All questions asked will be collated 
and published on the OSII website: 
www.osii.nsw.gov.au

Review these market sounding 
materials on the OSII website

Sign up to our mailing list for 
updates to the tender and 
notifications for when it is released: 
www.osii.nsw.gov.au/newsletter

Can OSII provide guidance during the tender 
process?

OSII acknowledges that information gaps may 
exist, and further information may be required 
to develop proposals in response to this 
tender during the submission phase.

Any queries can be directed to the OSII by 
email. A final date will be provided in the 
tender.

Note that OSII can provide general information 
about SII and tender processes, timing and 
requirements. OSII cannot give detailed advice 
or feedback on proposals prior to or during a 
formal tender process, nor can it advocate or 
promote potential proponents or their 
proposals to other government agencies and 
market participants. 

Any additional information made available in 
response to a request will also be distributed 
to all persons who have registered an interest 
in this tender.

OSII will be holding 
market sounding 
sessions and 
engagements until 23 
May. 

The SIOF Tender 1 
documentation and 
process will be 
finalised based on the 
feedback received 
through the 
consultation process.

Tender will be released by:

30 June

Consultations will 
conclude on:

23 May

mailto:socialimpactinvestment@treasury.nsw.gov.au
http://www.osii.nsw.gov.au/
http://www.osii.nsw.gov.au/newsletter
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